
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 6 March 2023 
 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 14 March 2023 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in the 

Creation Space, The Point, Leigh Road, Eastleigh SO50 9DE 

 
TO: Councillor Alex Bourne (Chair) 
 Councillor Paul Bicknell (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Steve Beer 
Councillor Bhavin Dedhia 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Darshan Mann 
 

Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Cameron Spencer 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
 

Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298  
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak 
before the meeting. 
 

 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at 
the start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  
To register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
This meeting will be recorded and published on the Council's YouTube channel. 
 
Please also be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social 
media is permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or 
Support Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities 
can be provided. More information can be found here. 
 
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers. 

 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2023. 
 

4.   Public Participation  
 
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email 
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
12pm on 13 March 2023. 
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can 
manage numbers. We are still encouraging all those in attendance to take a 
lateral flow test before attending the meeting. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF 
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 

5.   Chair's Report  
 

6.   Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) (Pages 11 - 34) 
 

7.   Community Grants (Pages 35 - 40) 
 

8.   Air Quality Update (Pages 41 - 74) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 6 June 2023 at 7:00 pm 

In the Auditorium, The Point, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9DE 

 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 24 January 2023  (7:00 pm – 8:11 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Bourne (Chair); Councillors Bicknell, Beer, Dedhia, Irish, Park, 
Spencer and Tyson-Payne 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mann 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

60. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2022 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

61. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
An email was read out from Councillor Tidridge requesting information on 
when work was scheduled to be completed for the new car park spaces on 
the land previously occupied by the public toilets at The Hub. She also 
queried if a paved link to the main road to the west of where the block was 
planned was set to be reinstated. 
 
Councillor Tidridge cited problems with the current site, including that 
pedestrian access to The Hub from the bus stop and pavement used to be 
possible using the paved path to the west of the toilet block, but now it was 
a ‘muddy gap in the hedge’.  She stated that the carpark was frequently 
overused, especially when events take place and that having a few more 
spaces available might help to address the issue and reduce the risk of 
damaging fly parking. She also stated the site was an eyesore. 
 
Councillor Tidridge expressed her disappointment that users of The Hub 
still did not have acceptable toilet provisions with just two toilets being 
available to users when the centre was open. She stated the toilets used 
to be a useful provision for residents of Bishopstoke and Fair Oak who 
walked to Eastleigh via the Itchen Way. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

It was agreed that the Local Area Manager would provide a written 
response to Councillor Tidridge’s concerns. 
 

62. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair gave the following report: 
 
Pirelli Park  

The Chair was pleased to report that the Climbing Frame was now open 
following a redesign and manufacture of the netting. He hoped this would 
reduce the risk of vandalism in future, and was now working with the play 
equipment provider to agree a redesigned solution for the swings. The 
Chair hoped to have an update very soon. 
  
Freespace Skate Park 

The tender process for the design and build of Freespace Skatepark had 
recently concluded, following the vandalism two years ago. The Chair was 
pleased to say that they had now received a £67,500 award from the 
Veolia Environmental Trust to add to the original £150,000 project budget. 
They would shortly be consulting user groups on the emerging designs, 
and more details would follow soon. 
  
Summer events 

The Chair was also pleased that despite the current financial pressures, 
they had been able to secure funding for regular events, which were free 
to all and provided important opportunities to come together in the face of 
the cost of living. In particular Eastleigh Unwrapped on 10 June 2023 and 
the Mela on the 23 July 2023. 
  
Romsey Close/Toynbee Road Retirement Home  

There had been several notable developments in and around the town 
centre in recent months. Along with local residents and fellow councillors, 
the Chair received an invitation to an online consultation about a proposed 
development of an 84 bed retirement home by Churchills. For more 
information and to have a say, the link is here: 
www.consultwithyou.co.uk/churchill/eastleigh  
 

63. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Principal Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This 
was set against the broader policy framework. 

4

http://www.consultwithyou.co.uk/churchill/eastleigh


3 
 

 

 
64. PLANNING APPLICATION - 1 ROMSEY CLOSE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 

9AP 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 7) concerning the erection of a two and three-
storey block of 7no. two-bedroom flats with associated parking, 
landscaping and detached bin and cycle storage, following demolition of 
existing dwelling and garage. (Ref: F/21/91985). 
 
The Committee was updated that: 
 

 Condition 1 - Additional drawing, ‘20-37-07 Rev B’. 

 Urban Design & Landscape – Formal comments still to be received 
but informally there is no objection. 

 Natural England – Objection on grounds of impact upon New Forest 
SAC, SPA and Ramsar site. 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to securing of contributions 
towards the Council’s New Forest Mitigation Strategy. 
 
(Note: One person spoke in objection to the development on behalf of 
Hamberley Care Home citing concerns, that included but were not limited 
to, the detail of the scheme, the proximity to the care home, overlooking of 
windows into the gardens, and residents concerned about overlooking of 
the building. 
 
The applicants spoke in support of the scheme, citing reasons including 
that it was a sensitive development that aimed to minimise its impact on 
neighbours, the area already had changes and lack of light and 
overlooking from the care home itself, sustainability of the development 
and the encouragement of use of public transport, and sensitive 
landscaping of the garden and boundary.) 
 

65. PLANNING APPLICATION - REGAL BUILDINGS, MARKET STREET, 
EASTLEIGH, SO50 5RL 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 8) concerning the conversion of former 
nightclub to form 4no. commercial units at ground floor and 11no. one-
bedroom, 5no. two bedroom and 2no. three-bedroom residential flats 
above with associated external works. (Ref: F/22/92939) 
 
The Committee was updated that: 
 

 Natural England – Objected on grounds of impact upon New Forest 
SAC, SPA and Ramsar site. 
 

5



4 
 

 

RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to: 

1. Completion of S106 agreement towards: Community 
Infrastructure; Public Open Space and Play Provision; Public 
Art; and Affordable Housing; and 

2. Securing contributions towards the New Forest mitigation 
scheme. 

 
 

66. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 9) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s capital and revenue budget. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the following recommendations were approved: 
 

(1) £1,145,031.41 was allocated for Home Wood public access 
from developers’ contributions; 

(2) £67,500 was allocated to the Freespace Skate Park Project 
from a Veolia Environmental Trust Grant; 

(3) £12,218.07 was allocated for the Fleming Park Paddling Pool, 
Play Area and Skate Park from developers’ contributions; 

(4) £4,000 was allocated for a one-way system at Falkland Road 
Car Park from developers’ contributions; 

(5) £6,000 was allocated for planters for Archers Road and 
Newtown Area from revenue budget; 

(6) £1,861 was allocated from the protection of greenspace at 
Suffolk Close from developers’ contributions; 

(7) £1,747 was allocated for a replacement pond dipping platform 
at North End Nature Park from developers’ contributions; and 

(8) £1,258 was allocated for fencing and gate repairs at Boyatt 
Wood Countryside Area from the revenue budget. 

 
67. PARKING FEES AND CHARGES 

 
Consideration was given to a report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 10). 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Eastleigh Local Area Committee approved: 
 

(1) The all-day parking tariff at the Mitchell Road Multi Storey Car 
Park (MSCP) is reduced from £8.50 to £5; 

(2) The 5-hour parking tariff is deleted; and 

6



5 
 

 

(3) The annual season ticket/contract parking rate is increased 
from £1,233.33 to £1,300 per annum (equal to the £5 per day 
rate). 

 
68. PLANNING APPEALS 

 
The Legal Services Manager reported: 
 

(a) that the following appeal had been dismissed:- 
 

28 Allbrook Knoll, Eastleigh, SO50 4RX 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of the erection of an external lift 
and dormer to the rear. 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

69. EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED - 
  
(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and 
 

(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 
interest in disclosing the information contained in the following 
item of business was outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption. 

 
70. TEMPORARY CONTRACT PARKING CHARGES 

 
The Local Area Manager introduced the report.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the recommendations in the report be approved.  

7



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 14 March 2023 

TRO, VARIOUS ROADS, EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE AREA 

Report of the Traffic Management Engineer 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) A Traffic Regulation Order is made, the effects of which are to introduce 

waiting and parking restrictions in: 

a) Belmont Road,  

b) Falcon Square – North West Corner 

c) Falcon Square – Both Service Roads 

d) Surrey Road 

e) Sussex Road 

 

(2) Amend waiting and parking restrictions in:  

(a) York Road 

(b) Derby Road 

(3)      Withdraw the proposals for waiting restrictions in Crestwood View 

           as advertised on 13 January 2023. 

 
 

Summary 
 
A proposal to introduce waiting and parking restrictions in various roads in Eastleigh Town 
Centre was advertised on 13 January 2023.  Representations were received both in 
support of, and objection to, the advertised restrictions.  This report summarises the 
comments received and recommends how to proceed 

Statutory Powers 
 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.  

Legal Agreements 

Agency Agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council 
which will terminate on 31 March 2023. 
 

9

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Strategic Implications  

1. Creating an excellent environment for all by removing obstructive and 
inconsiderate parking. 

Introduction 

2. Various roads in the Local Area have been investigated in response to 
reported problems such as obstructive parking.  Site investigations were 
undertaken to assess the issues being experienced by road users, and to 
decide on appropriate measures to mitigate the issues.   

3. This report details the comments received during the public consultation 
period.  The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, before 
making a decision to introduce, amend or withdraw the Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

Detail 

4. Consultation was undertaken by means of a Public Notice on the Eastleigh 
Borough Council website, published in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, and posted on street furniture in the vicinity of the proposed 
restrictions. In addition, a letter containing details of the proposals was 
delivered by hand to affected properties in Crestwood View. Plans showing 
the proposed restrictions are in Appendix 1. 

5. Nineteen representations were received in total within the consultation period 
and one further representation received after the consultation period. All of 
these are discussed in detail in this report. The breakdown of these is as 
follows: seventeen in relation to Crestwood View, one in relation to Derby 
Road and two in relation to Falcon Square. 

6. One further minor enquiry was received during the consultation period 
concerning a detail of the proposals in York Road, which has now been 
resolved satisfactorily. 

7. The twenty representations are summarised below, along with the Engineer’s 
response.  The full (redacted) text of the representations can be found in 
Appendix 2 

 

 

 

 

 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

8.  

Comment Engineer’s response 

Fifteen residents of Crestwood View 
objected or strongly objected to the 
proposals in Crestwood View on the 
grounds of: 

Loss of amenity; 

Inadequate planning consideration at 
the development stage; 

Relocated parking to potentially 
unsafe locations (Woodside 
Avenue). 

The current proposals, despite being 
much less restrictive than previous 
proposals, are still likely to affect 
residential and visitor parking to 
properties by reducing limited 
kerbside parking space, with little 
opportunity for this parking to be 
relocated safely elsewhere. In view 
of the level of opposition received, it 
is recommended to withdraw this 
proposal. 

Two residents of Crestwood View 
supported or partially supported the 
proposals on the grounds of access 
for emergency services and that 
“something needs to be done” 

Noted. 

One request was received to 
consider reducing the current 
proposal to remove two parking 
places in Derby Road, to only one 
parking place.  

Noted for consideration. 

One resident objected to the 
proposals in the NW corner of 
Falcon Square citing concerns over 
loss of parking for nearby residents   

The proposals are intended to 
improve manoeuvrability for refuse 
collection vehicles, currently often 
obstructed by parked vehicles at the 
NW corner of Falcon Square. There 
have been 12 incidents of missed 
collections reported by EBC crews in 
2022, with 28 complaints of missed 
collections by residents in 2021 & 
2022, despite several visits to 
residents from local response 
officers and written requests, the 
issue continues. 

One further resident was in support 
of the proposals in Falcon Square. 
They also requested additional 
restrictions for Wren Road. 

Noted. 

Additional restrictions are beyond 
the scope of this report. As 
previously stated, the Agency 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Agreement between Hampshire 
County Council and Eastleigh 
Borough Council which will terminate 
on 31 March 2023. 

 

 

Financial Implications 

9. The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the core 
TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a cost of 
approximately £4k 

Risk Assessment 

10. If the proposals are not implemented, it is likely that the issues intended to be 
addressed in the above roads will continue.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  In summary the EqIA shows that 
there are minor positive impacts in many of the roads identified within the 
proposals by restricting waiting at the kerbside, thereby discouraging drivers 
from obstructing footways and driveways. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

12. The proposals should not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology 
or the environment.   

Conclusion 

13. The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement 
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of 
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway.  The proposed waiting 
restrictions attracted objections, comments and expressions of support.  This 
report takes into consideration all the representations received and 
recommends as per item 1 of this report.   

 

 

ANDREW PLEDGE 
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER  

 
Date: 6 January 2023 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Contact Officer: Andrew Pledge 
Tel No: x8336 
e-mail: andy.pledge@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2 
 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None  
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn by:Date:

Drawing No.:

Scale @ A4:

Title:

Scheme:

Rev:

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2022)

Status:

Date: Chkd:Description:

Checked by:

Project No.: Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire.  SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

15



Rev:Project No.:

Checked by:

Scheme:

Title:

Scale @ A3:

Drawing No.:

Date: Drawn by:

Description: Chkd:Date:

Status:

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
(C) Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2014)

Rev:

Environment
Specialist
Services

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
ENVIRONMENT SPECIALIST SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire.  SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Key

Proposed "no
waiting at any time"

16



Rev:Project No.:

Checked by:

Scheme:

Title:

Scale @ A3:

Drawing No.:

Date: Drawn by:

Description: Chkd:Date:

Status:

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
(C) Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2014)

Rev:

Environment
Specialist
Services

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
ENVIRONMENT SPECIALIST SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire.  SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Key

Proposed "no
waiting at any time"

Existing "no waiting
at any time"

Two spaces to be removed

"Mon - Sat 8am - 8pm
  Z3 Permit Holders or
     2 hours No return
       within 2 hours"

17



Drawn by:Date:

Drawing No.:

Scale @ A4:

Title:

Scheme:

Rev:

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2022)

Status:

Date: Chkd:Description:

Checked by:

Project No.: Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire.  SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

18



Drawn by:Date:

Drawing No.:

Scale @ A4:

Title:

Scheme:

Rev:

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2022)

Status:

Date: Chkd:Description:

Checked by:

Project No.: Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire.  SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED TO ELAC VARIOUS ROADS No 1 TRO 2023 (REDACTED) 

 

Derby Road (1 representation): 

I have one concern and that is the removal of the 2 parking bays north of Derby Road. This area is 

very tight for residents parking so removing any spaces is not a decision to be taken lightly. As this is 

close to the junction of Southampton Road the speed of the traffic along Derby Road is not great. 

Traffic coming out of Market Street does edge out slowly. I’m not aware of a large number of 

accidents unlike the junctions of Tennyson Road. While I fully appreciate the road safety aspect I 

question if 2 spaces need to be removed and if better sighting can’t be achieved by just removing 1?  

 

Falcon Square (2 representations): 

1. I support these proposals and would like to see additional restrictions in Wren Road (received 

verbally by phone).  

 

2. I received a letting informing me that the council is removing parking from outside of my house (in 

Falcon Square) I would like to object to this on the grounds of it affecting my family life. 

We do not have anywhere else to park, or have our family members park. Some of which have very 

young children. With the amount of corners being taken away on this square, there will be no chance 

for other spots near our house to be available as everyone on the square will cram into those spots. 

There will literally not be enough parking left on the square to accommodate the amount of properties 

located here.  

It would be unreasonable to have residents of this area find other parking spaces, as this is only going 

to cause the same problems on other squares/locations. 

And what of families? It is unreasonable to think that families with young children have to leave their 

young ones unattended whilst they get things from the car which is now parked far from the house 

they are aiming towards, in order to get the children from the car, along with any shopping etc they 

might have. Whatever their reasons for being out in the car, it might not be practical to have 2 or more 

children under arm, with buggies, shopping etc. So the only way to do it would be to do separate runs. 

Therefore having to do multuple trips. Therefore not safe for the children. 

The people who live in these houses, we moved in knowing that cars could be parked here. To take 

this away changes the accessibility the residents had when choosing to pay and move it. We do not 

necessarily have the money to up and move. 

I understand that there is a problem regarding the bin trucks getting through the square which is what 

has spurred this on. But there needs to be an alternative that can be put in place that doesn’t 

negatively impact all the lives of the people in the houses you have named.  

A tracker app for the bin men so we could see when they will be here and then move the cars if 

necessary. 

A permit for only the people who live in those houses so you know its not just random people parking 

there. Then requesting those people move their cars on bin day (possibly using said app suggested). 

That way if they don't move them for that short time, you know who the car belongs to.  

Have the bin men walk to get the bins! its only a few steps to walk the square, they could easily walk 

out and grab the bins and walk them back to the truck if its a busy part day that day. I mean, they get 

paid for the job after all. It shouldn't mine and the other residents lives affected, our homes altered, 

21



which is what not having a parking space does to a house, just to stop the men and women who are 

getting paid to do a job walking a few extra steps. 

When looking for a property to live in, parking is one of the top things people look for. To take this 

away with no alternate solution for the residents, is completely unacceptable and 

inconsiderate. Please find another way. 

 

Crestwood View (17 representations) 

1. I am writing to object to elements of the proposed waiting restrictions laid out on your website 

and which I have received through the post today. I am the resident of Crestwood View and the 

proposed no waiting at any time restriction would include the area of road directly outside my 

house. We routinely use this area to park a car and if we were unable to continue to do so it would 

make life very difficult for us for a number of reasons. 

Although we do have off road parking in the form of a car port this is only really big enough for one 

car and my job and that of my wife (a doctor and nurse in the emergency department at 

Southampton General Hospital) mean that we are frequently working overlapping shifts so need to 

have two cars. Moreover we have two very young children and the width of the car port means it is 

impossible to fully open a cars doors and therefore extremely difficult to get very young children in 

and out of car seats safely. Therefore we routinely use the space in front of our house to park a 

second car and to enable us to get children in and out of it. 

Restricting the parking outside our house will put significant restrictions upon my family specifically 

and I fail to see what advantage it would have since a single car outside our house does not cause 

anybody else inconvenience. Nobody ever parks on the opposite side of the road since doing so 

would block a driveway so a car parked outside number 11 does not cause an obstruction or any 

risks to safety. I hope that you will reconsider. 

 
2. I am resident at Crestwood View. We do not have enough parking as it is. If you implement this 
plan it will be chaos and worse than it is now !  
If this plan is imposed where are we supposed to park? This estate is already terrible for parking, 
maximum profit squeezed 80 properties onto a postage stamp sized area with not enough parking. 
Are we supposed to park on Woodside avenue ?  
Disagree strongly with your proposal.  
 
 
3. Myself and my flat mate are against this proposed waiting restriction as it will prevent us being 

able to park our vehicles by our flat in crestwood view. We currently have 2 vehicles which are both 

in constant use and only one car parking spot. If your proposed plan goes ahead there will be no 

parking space available for us to use. Most flat and homes in the area have 2 or more vehicles and 

most flats only have 1 car parking space. This means there is not enough parking as it is and you will 

be preventing us from having reasonable parking for our home. May I suggest instead creating a no 

parking without permit zone or creating more parking spaces within the vicinity for us to use? 

 

4. I am against this order due to the number of properties in the road that require on road parking. 

However I recognise that when there are cars parked to the sides of no.9 and no.53 it creates a bit of 

a pinch point, particularly for the refuse truck. Therefore I would like to suggest an alternative as per 

22



the attached edit to your original plan (allowing parking next to no.9 and no.11.  I believe this would 

be an acceptable compromise to both the residents and the refuse collectors. Alternatively time 

restricted no waiting zones could work, where parking in those areas could be restricted during 

week days but unrestricted from 4pm to allow residents coming home from work to park. 

I'm keen to attend the meeting where this is discussed, therefore please let me know when this will 

occur. 

 

5. I would like to express my concern, and object to, the plan to implement "No waiting" restrictions, 

in Crestwood View. My objections are explained below. 

The area that runs from number 11, to number 29 Crestwood View, has never caused any issues to 

and vehicular access. There are regular arrivals of scaffold lorries, builders merchants, and white 

good delivery vehicles. None of which have ever had any difficulties with access or egress. I have 

lived in Crestwood View for 7 years, and work from home. So I am aware of most vehicular traffic 

throughout the day.  

There is currently insufficient parking within Crestwood View for the amount of cars within the area. 

Each property is allocated one space, however some properties have up to 5 cars. This issue has 

caused conflict between residents.  

I was informed, that upon planning the estate, the landowner opted to install a playground, which 

reduced the number of parking spaces requires to meet planning criteria. The playground is a 

circular fence surrounding some grass, nothing more. However, this is merely hearsay and perhaps 

could be looked into further. 

With the current cost of living crisis, more families are staying in the family home for longer, 

meaning adult children inevitably pass driving tests and buy cars. This leads to more cars per home 

than when the estate was planned. 

The proposed parking restrictions will remove the ability to park for up to 13 vehicles. This will 

further increase the risk of conflict within the community, condense the parking in the entrance and 

ends of the roads, and lead to more dangerous and/or inconsiderate parking. This increases the risk 

of difficulty getting emergency vehicles and HGV deliveries,  bin lorries etc, gaining access to the 

roads. 

There are already many occasions where vehicles are left with no option but to be parked in 

neighbouring estates on the other side of Woodside Avenue. This is I'll received by residents of these 

estates, and increases pedestrians crossing Woodside Avenue during peak traffic times. There have 

been many injuries and some deaths on this stretch of road, due to collisions with pedestrians and 

cyclists. Woodside Avenue is direct access to Eastleigh industrial estates from the Motorway, 

therefore is dense with HGV traffic. The possibility of endangering lives should be a major 

consideration when pushing parking into neighbouring estates.  

These parking restriction plans have already had an effect on property sales within the estate. 

Potential buyers have cited the restrictions as reason for not making offers on properties within 

Crestwood View, as parking is already a concern. This reduces the interest in property in the area, 

therefore reducing the value of homes.  

 

23



Reducing parking space will cause more inconsiderate parking as stated above. There are currently 

issues with badly parked vehicles causing pedestrians to walk into the road as pavements are 

blocked off. This will be compounded by the reduction in areas where vehicles can park. 

 

Some of the proposed areas cross the ends of homeowners driveways, which cannot be parked on. 

Some other areas are around cars which are parked entirely off the road, meaning the restrictions 

only purpose will be to reduce the parking spaces within the estate. 

Within the Statement of Reasons, it is stated that, 'The proposals have due regard to the 

requirements of S122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, by securing the expeditious, 

convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the 

provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway. Is it expeditious, convenient 

and safe, to force residents to park on the other side of a busy 40mph road, carrying HGV traffic, 

thereby creating more pedestrian traffic crossing this road at peak times, increasing risk to life?  

Is the proposal taking into account the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities by 

removing spaces for up to 13 vehicles? 

I would like to object to the proposed waiting restrictions based on the above points. There is 

currently reasonable access to premises. The proposed restrictions if accepted and implemented will 

cause unnecessary disruption to the community, including traffic, risk to life, access and egress, 

parking and property value. 

I would like to be informed that this objection has been received by the correct department for 

consideration. If this objection is not received by the correct department, or has been received in an 

incorrect manner, please inform at your earliest convenience so that I may correct any issues. 

I am happy to discuss this matter further with a representative of the council if required. Am I 

permitted to view the risk assessment relevant to this proposal?  

 

6. This letter is to object to the proposed "No waiting at any time", specifically: 

Crestwood View (main)- From a point adjacent to the common boundary of Nos. 8 & 9 

Crestwood View south- eastwards to a point adjacent to the common boundary of Nos. 53 & 

54 Crestwood View. The road on this side is wider along the proposed line due to a 

protruding non-driving area (Bush along the pavement), for that reason parking on this side 

is not affecting access.  

I propose to go ahead only with the line on the opposite side - Crestwood View (North-east 

spur)- From the junction with Crestwood View (main) north-eastwards to a point adjacent to 

the rear building lines of Nos. 9 & 53 Crestwood View. By only introducing a "No waiting at 

any time" line on the right side of the road will ensure  access is sufficient without impacting 

the available parking space. Please see an image showing in green the supported No 

Waiting zone and in red the Opposed. 

24



 

 

7. We are writing to express our concerns at the plans to place no stopping lines in Crestwood View.  

The estate is poorly designed with inadequate parking for residents, let alone visitors and these 

proposed plans will only make the situation much worse. We have regular visits from a nurse to 

provide important live saving care to our son at home and she often parks where the proposed 

restrictions will be. Without these areas she would be forced to park much further away and carry 

the equipment and medication longer distances.  

The original design for the estate should have not been approved with the current parking allocation 

and we don't see why current residents should be punished for this lack of foresight. 

 

8. I live in Crestwood view and I was very surprised when a neighbour alerted me to the fact that the 
local council are planning to put yellow lines around my own driveway without our knowledge. This 
is unacceptable. We have received several letters about a no waiting restriction, but nothing about 
these yellow lines. 
 
I would like to oppose these lines as they will cause fighting and competition for the limited spaces 
that are currently present, as well as a lack of parking for visitors. I honestly believe the onus for this 
problem is on the council, who accepted the plans for this estate and its lack of parking less than 20 
years ago. The parking is already minimal and these restrictions will only punish those who don’t 
have private driveways like myself. This is not fair. The buildings are in fact illegal as law requires 
14m between front windows between one property and another. Residents should not be punished 
for bad planning. I hope the council reconsiders 
 

25



9. I have recently received a letter regarding about parking being restricted due to double lines being 
introduced.  I’m writing today with a complaint due to parking being restricted as it is. This cul-de-
sac only has one allocated space and very limited visitor parking space. There are two cars or more 
to every household. Parking has never been an issue. With regards to the lines being introduced it 
will be I’m possible to park especially when I have a baby to get in and out of my apartment.  
 
Also I’m not sure where myself and other residents are meant to park? As I say it’s never been an 
issue and all residents respect each other. Why have the lines been introduced? Especially when 
we’re not a main road or centre of Eastleigh. I’ll look forward to hearing from you soon.  
 
 

10. I am writing regarding the above which we are extremely dismayed to discover is 

still under consideration.  Whilst it is positive to see that the original utterly ridiculous 

proposals have been significantly reduced, we do not agree that any waiting 

restrictions are required anywhere in Crestwood View, especially opposite to and in 

front of our property! 

As stated during the previous consultation, we have lived in Crestwood View for 15 

years and we have never been subject to a delivery that couldn’t get to us, no matter 

how big the delivery vehicle has been or when it has been due  We’ve also had a 

weekly food shopping delivery by Sainsbury’s every Sunday morning for a number of 

years which has also never failed to arrive on time.  The delivery lorry always parks 

outside our property without issue.  In addition, our bins have only not been collected 

on our bin day about 4 or 5 times in that whole period. 

We would now like to comment on the two current waiting restrictions areas 

individually; 1) The proposed waiting restrictions at the pinch point adjacent to Nos. 9 

and 53 

Whilst we are aware that parked vehicles adjacent to the pinch point may be in the 

way of large vehicles such as the larger refuse lorries (the smaller one has no 

issues) and the odd large delivery lorry turning left, however this occurrence is very 

rare.  We obviously know that the refuse lorry was unable to collect our bin just after 

Xmas (the first time in a very long time!), but this was only due to the fact that it was 

Xmas and many more residents were at home on that particular bin collection day 

than are ever at home during our normal bin collection day on Thursday mornings 

when Crestwood View is completely clear!!  Has anyone from EBC or the 

Councillors viewed things first hand on our normal bin collection day?  Vehicles 

parked at the build out blocking the larger refuse vehicle (and/or delivery lorries) 

possibly happens a couple of times a year which certainly does not justify the need 

for waiting restrictions.  Should anyone that does not live in Crestwood View tell 

you this scenario is a regular occurrence, they are not correct and they’re passing on 

false information.  Vehicles parked here have never caused us any issues and we 

drive through it dozens of times every week! 

 

2) The proposed waiting restrictions on the corners of the spur opposite our property 

and those directly in front of our property  

26



The previous waiting restriction proposal had a ‘blanket’ coverage of Crestwood 

View, but it left a stretch in front of my property clear.  At the time I commented that 

that leaving this gap would cause residents and visitors to park in front of our 

property more frequently and in doing so would make turning around in the turning 

area more difficult.  This comment was only designed to exacerbate the 

thoughtlessness of the original waiting restriction proposal, it was NOT to 

indicate that we want waiting restrictions in front of our property or that any 

are required.  Waiting restrictions in front of our property have zero 

justification in this revised proposal as there will still be plenty of space for 

residents/visitors to park elsewhere.  The previous ‘blanket’ waiting 

restrictions which would’ve caused this issue have now been removed.  Why 

has this not been realised?  Vehicles currently very rarely park in front of our 

property and those that do are generally delivery vans/vehicles and they’re only 

there for a couple of minutes at a time.  This does not justify having restrictions 

imposed. To be clear, WE DO NOT WANT WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN FRONT 

OF OUR PROPERTY.  They are completely unnecessary and pointless, so we 

would be grateful if they were removed from the proposals.   

Similarly, the restrictions proposed on the corners of the spur opposite our property 

are also completely unnecessary.  Yes residents may park on the corners when 

there isn’t anywhere else to park, however these vehicles do not cause any 

obstruction and there is still plenty of room for all turning movements.  We know this 

to be true as they happen directly outside our living and family room windows and 

we’ve never seen any vehicle that cannot turn in or out of the spur or cannot turn 

around in the turning head.  These corners are clear the majority of the time 

therefore these waiting restrictions are also unnecessary and should be 

removed. 

 

It could be argued that the proposed restrictions by the pinch point and on the 

corners of the spur will increase visibility thus making both corners safer.  However, 

it must be remembered that both of these locations are existing corners therefore 

vehicular speeds are already very low.  The installation of restrictions as proposed 

will ‘open up’ all these corners which is likely to give drivers increased confidence 

and have the opposite effect and speeds will increase which will make Crestwood 

View less safe.  Especially by delivery vans etc.  How many accidents or incidents of 

collision have occurred at these locations since Crestwood View was built?  We’re 

not aware of any at all in the 15 years we’ve lived here.  Therefore this does not add 

any weight to waiting restrictions. 

In summary, we wish to object to ALL of the current waiting restriction proposals in 

Crestwood View.  The whole proposal is completely unnecessary and unwanted. 

To finish, I am aware that the TRO responsibility (amongst others) is moving back in-

house to Hampshire County Council on April 1st.  Therefore I’m sure EBC are keen 

to implement as much of their current TRO programme as possible prior to this 

date.  However, this most definitely must not be used as any kind of leverage to 

implement  as many TRO’s etc. as possible prior to this date.  It feels like Crestwood 

27



View (among other roads) is being pushed forward for no other particular reason 

than this.I have also spoken to our MP about these proposals, and he will no doubt 

be contacting EBC and possibly HCC in the near future if not already done so. 

Should the Borough Council continue to pursue completely unnecessary waiting 

restrictions in Crestwood View, we will take the matter further.  Crestwood View is a 

quiet road come cul-de-sac that DOES NOT REQUIRE waiting restrictions of any 

kind in any location! 

I would be very happy to discuss any of the above, however the last time I requested 

meeting the Councillors who are in favour of these unjustifiable proposals they 

completely refused any kind of meeting and also refused to call me…I suggest this is 

because they know waiting restrictions in Crestwood View are not justifiable and that 

nobody that lives here wants them. 

Lastly, I’m also aware that the Borough Council did not post a letter through every 

residents door and only the residents ‘directly affected’ received a letter.  This is not 

the full and proper re-consultation which was promised. We look forward to hearing 

these ridiculous proposals have been dropped. 

 

11. Just to let your office know that we are very pleased that this new parking restrictions will be 

implemented at last. It is very upsetting that some residents are inconsiderate when parking their 

car especially if there will be an ambulance going in.  

Could we also suggest if you can please start the yellow line on the entrance of Crestwood view 

because they are double parking and it’s not only a small car but also big vans. Hoping this 

implementation to be implemented as soon as possible.  

 

12. I am a resident in crestwood view and have been recently informed of the notice of intended 
parking restrictions due to be brought in. 
I wholly disagree with these planned restrictions and having been a resident for 5 years, I have never 
experienced problems with the parking nor have I witnessed people parking disrespectfully or 
disruptively.  
This with impact me massively due to family and my partner now being unable to park near me 
when visiting. 
 This is not to mention the difficulty that will occur for our elderly residents having visitors/ careers 
and residents who have small children. 
Ultimately, why wasn’t the parking at these apartments taken into consideration by the council 
when they were built, as now with zero visitors spots in place, it leaves no alternative options. 
I hope you reconsider. 
 
 
13. Re your intentions to put double yellow lines along portions of Crestwood View. My husband and 
myself have lived in Crestwood View for nearly 15 yrs when the site was newly built! Under the 
covenant work vans were not permitted to park in the close, over the years more and more are 
being parked here, thus cutting down the number of available parking spaces for cars! This has 
resulted in some unbelievable parking from some residents!!  

28



I totally agree something needs to be done, as on occasions I doubt emergency services would be 
able to get through to the lower end of the close!!  I agree that double yellow lines need to be put at 
the first turn (to the left) by properties 8,9 &53 54 as this is where the bottle neck occurs , and 
emergency services would struggle, not sure putting the lines on the next turn would help , there is a 
lot of cars here and there would be nowhere for the residents to park! If some how work vehicles 
could be banned from parking in the close this would definitely free up a few parking spaces! 
 
 
14. I would like to object to parts of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for Eastleigh Town 

Centre (Amendment No. 1, Order 2023), as described here, specifically as it relates to Crestwood 

View. The proposed TRO would involve the introduction of 'no waiting at any time' restrictions (double 

yellow lines) along segments of the main stretch of Crestwood View and its North-east spur. 

I am aware that the reasons given by the council for the proposals include reducing danger to road 

users and ensuring space for vehicular access. However, I do not believe these are valid reasons 

given the current context, and indeed would make matters worse. This is because: 

The road is already sufficiently safe. Given the road layout and low traffic speeds, vehicles using 

Crestwood View pose negligible danger to other road users. I write this even as a resident who is a 

parent with a young family. 

There have not, to my knowledge, been any recent issues with vehicular access. The local roads 

cannot be described as wide, but there is nevertheless still ample space for vehicles to pass - this 

includes emergency vehicles and goods lorries, as well as cars.  

Most importantly, the proposed parking restrictions would cause difficulties for those residents for 

whom on-road parking is a necessity. Additional restrictions would increase competition for parking, 

displace cars into less desirable locations (such as onto pavements, particularly from cars protruding 

from overfull driveways), and thereby cause frustration and practical difficulties for residents, visitors, 

and pedestrians.  

In short, the proposed introduction of double yellow lines on Crestwood View represents a solution to 

a problem that does not exist. The effect would be to: 

- Negatively impact local residents, and result in unnecessary council expenditure - at a time when the 

council must be facing considerable budgetary pressures. 

I strongly urge Eastleigh Borough Council to reconsider the proposed TRO as it relates to Crestwood 

View, and cancel the intended introduction of parking restrictions.Thank you for taking this viewpoint 

into consideration. 

 
15. As a resident of Crestwood View I am concerned to discover that there are proposed new 

parking restrictions in this area. There is a complete lack of visitor parking within Crestwood View 

and as much as I appreciate that the current situation poses a risk to residents with cars blocking 

access for emergency vehicles,  I feel that if the borough council decides to inflict the proposed 

restrictions,  then they should at least make an alternative parking area available for visitors.  It 

appears that most properties in the close have extremely limited parking with their properties and it 

is therefore not at all practical to reduce this even further.  Because of this I would like to register my 

opposition to the proposals.  

I would however,  like to suggest that the area towards the far end of Crestwood View,  which is 

currently waste woodland and a ridiculous play park area (that only gets used by youth drinking in 

the summer and leaving empty alcohol bottles) could be put to so much better use by clearing this 

area and making it a visitors car park for Crestwood View.  Access could easily be made from the 

road in Crestwood View.  I am sure other residents would be interested in this idea as parking is 

29

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/12689/ebc-no-waiting-town-centre.pdf


always a problem and if everyone was willing to contribute to the cost or pay visitor parking permits 

to fund this then the issue could be resolved and the restrictions where you have suggested put in 

place. 

 

16. As a resident of Crestwood View I strongly oppose the plans to limit the parking at 

Crestwood View, whilst I understand the need to control parking which should have been 

considered when planning permission was granted, given most people have two cars but 

only one car parking space allocated to each property it's not surprising cars park along the 

road. The Crestwood View development has never had any issues over the years since it's 

construction with parking and all residents are considerate of each, and I see no difference 

in the way residents park to that of any other street or road where there is on road parking 

The council have not come up with any alternative parking which will mean residents with a 

second car will move the problem to another area thus causing parking issues in an area 

which no doubt had no problems. I would ask the council to reconsider their plans to 

introduce limited parking and consider that fact most households have two cars and the 

impact on other residents in other areas if they have to find alternative parking. I do object 

to very large commercial vans being parked along the road and perhaps that can be 

controlled to some degree.   

 

17. I see that you are once again proposing yellow lines in Crestwood View, despite previous 

rejections. I appreciate that it is a smaller area this time, but this still begs the question of where 

people will park who normally park in those spaces. As I mentioned previously, the only people who 

park in Crestwood View are residents and people visiting residents. There is no other parking close 

by.  I would again request that this is not implemented, but if it is then other parking would have to 

be made available. There is an unused playground in Crestwood View which I'm sure could be made 

into residents and visitors car parking spaces. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

30



 

 
 

 

 

31



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 14 March 2023 

COMMUNITY GRANTS 

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the 
Eastleigh Community Grants Panel 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee approves the grants as set out in Appendix 1 
to the report. 
 
 

Summary 
 
The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in 
the Eastleigh, Allbrook and Velmore area for 2022/23. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. The 
recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling 
Deprivation, Enabling Heathier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an 
Excellent Environment, Improving Town and Local Centres, Increasing 
Provision and Ensuring a more diverse mix of Housing, and Enabling the 
Right Skills and Employment mix.  

Introduction 

2. This Committee has allocated £10,000 for a community grant budget to 
support local organisations. Eight different grant applications were received 
with a total value of £9,424.  

3. The grant panel comprises Councillors Park, Mann, Beer and Dedhia, 
representing the three local wards of the Local Area Committee.  

The Panel’s decisions 

33

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

4. The Grants Panel sought to ensure the available funding was spread 
throughout the three local wards. 

5. The Panel also considered the objectives of the organisations, the numbers 
attending, whether they were from the Local Area, the total cost of the project 
and whether funding was or could be sought from elsewhere. The applications 
were also assessed against the following criteria: Inclusion of a business plan, 
details on how the grant application meets Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
priorities (Healthy Communities, Green Borough and Prosperous Place) and 
confirmation that the applications were not for day to day running costs. 

6. It is recommended that grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

Financial Implications 

7. The total grants awarded in this report amounts to £7,164 and can be 
accommodated within the approved budget of £10,000.  

Risk Assessment 

8. The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant risks. 
All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed application 
and supporting documents, including the submission of financial details. A 
monitoring form will also be sent out to all successful recipients to ensure the 
funds have been spent in line with the approved grant within 12 months of the 
award. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably. The Council has had due 
regard to the aims of the Equality Act. The recommendations in this report 
promote equality of opportunity, in particular for children and young people, 
children and young people with disabilities and disabled people (including 
mental health) and older people. As part of the application process, applicants 
are required to submit an Equal Opportunities statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

34



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

10. Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

           The community grants aim to encourage a change in residents’ behaviours by 
supporting projects that incorporate green initiatives. For example, the North 
Stoneham Community Group are organising a Christmas event for local 
residents and this Committee requests that any materials to be used should 
be as sustainable as possible, for example, the promotional flyers should be 
made from recycled paper. Dementia Support Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
are providing 12 months of art and craft sessions for their clients and this 
Committee requests that all materials used as part of these sessions are as 
sustainable as possible. 

Conclusion 

11. The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s 
corporate priorities, as well as this Committee’s local priorities. Subject to the 
approval of this Committee, the grants will be awarded in March 23 to 
recognise and celebrate the extent of community work being undertaken in 
the local area. 

SIOBHAN STRAND 
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 08 February 2023 
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand  
Tel No: 02380 688428 
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

8 grant applications were received and are held on file for further inspection. 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Name Amount applied for How will grant be spent Amount recommended Grant conditions/notes

Dementia Support Hampshire & IOW £1,214 The grant will be used to fund the arts and crafts for 12 months. 
Mobile Craft Trolley £214 Art & craft material £1,000 (£20 per session x 
50 sessions (50 weeks)

£1,214 Details on specific sessions for 
Eastleigh residents required, i.e. 
timetable and maximum capacity 
numbers.  Request that all materials 
used are as sustainable as possible. 

Compassionate Cuppa CIC £1,060 Room Hire for 8 sessions (16 hours at £25 per hour) = £400 
Refreshments (Tea/Coffee) = £50 Transport costs = £40 Stationery to 
use in sessions = £20 Aide Memoire for each participant to use in 
sessions (up to 12 people) = £20 Marketing costs (Leaflets/Posters) = 
£50 Delivery of 8 sessions = £480

£600 Partial grant awarded, but not for 
room hire as this is not with the 
grants criteria. Request that all 
materials used (leaflets/posters) are 
as sustainable as possible.

MHA Communities Eastleigh and Romsey £1,000 This grant will allow us to work alongside the Point in central Eastleigh 
to establish a " Warm space" that vulnerable people will be able to 
access over the winter , this wont just be about heat , we will also 
provide emergency support and sign posting where needed. This grant 
will fund activities for people accessing the warm space some of which 
will be led by staff from either the point or MHA as well as emergency 
food parcels and other essentials.

£1,000

Locomotive Engineers club and Institute ltd £550 Our building is the first building in central Eastleigh that you see as you 
drive over the bridge from Bishopstoke. The building does not look 
very nice and inviting to both our members and the general public 
coming to Eastleigh. We would like to add flowers in hanging baskets 
etc with n automated watering system to help improve the looks of the 
building

£0 Club does not fall within the grants 
criteria.

The Pavilion on the Park Eastleigh Youth and 
Community Trust

£1,000 £120 Saddle replacement To replace some of our cycles saddle fleet. 
£300 Notebook/ tablet, with Microsoft and anti-virus. We aim for all 
our bookings to be able to be recorded online. £300 Marketing To 
increase our outreach to educational establishments. £150 Karaoke 
machine, CDs, and microphone for our weekly games and singing 
group. £80 Sensory balls and scented bean bag, to expand our sensory 
sports equipment. £50 two bike puncture repair kits, to look after our 
fleet.

£1,000

37



North Stoneham Community Group £1,500 15ft Xmas Tree - £150 Event compare - £180 Banners - £167 Flyers - 
£100 Food - £200 Staging - £703

£1,500 Materials used for the event should 
be as sustainable as possible (i.e. 
recycled flyers).

Thrive Church Uk £2,500 Hall hire £1760 - (£500 has already been secured by a local councillor 
grant) food -£1100 Food hygiene training £250

£1,250

Eastleigh Armed Forces & Veterans Breakfast 
Club

£600 Branded gazebo to promote our club at community events (eg 
Christmas Lights Switch On, Pride, Mela) and social events. We have 
been promoting the club on Royal British Legion stalls but would 
benefit from our own gazebo with our own branding.

£600 Subject to receiving gazebo quote 
and all supporting information.

Total £9,424 £7,164

38



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 14 March 2023  

AIR QUALITY UPDATE 

Report of the Senior Pollution Control Officer 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Committee note:   
 
(1) the update to the air quality measurements for Eastleigh in 2022; and 

(2) progress made against the Air Quality Action Plan. 

 

Summary 
 
This report provides an update to the Eastleigh Local Area Committee (ELAC) on the state 
of air quality and progress in implementing the Eastleigh Borough Council Air Quality 
Action Plan. It covers the period to the end of 2022 and includes recent data from 
monitoring stations in the Eastleigh Local Area and an update on the Eastleigh Air Quality 
Management Area Action Plan. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(2)  
 

The Air Quality Standards Regulations 2010 
 
Environment Act 2021 
 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The causes and consequences of poor air quality, and the action needed to 
tackle it, relate to many of the Council’s corporate objectives: Health and 
Wellbeing, Environment, Economy & Housing.  While this issue cuts across 
portfolios, the lead is taken by the Cabinet Member for Transport as part of the 
Council’s ‘Tackling Congestion’ objective.  This recognises that many 
interventions relate to Transport, and interventions designed to reduce 
congestion will often also improve air quality.   

2. National statutory air quality duties derive from negative impacts on health and 
wellbeing, especially for the very young and old and people with existing 

39

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

health conditions, even at pollution levels lower than statutory exceedance 
levels.  

Introduction 

3. Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) must be declared where pollutant 
concentrations are found to be at risk of exceeding national objective levels, 
which are shown in Appendix 2.  Once declared, AQMAs must have an 
associated Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) which contains measures aiming to 
bring levels of air pollution under the objective values. 

4. The four AQMAs in Eastleigh Borough are covered by the Borough-wide 
AQAP 2020 – 2025 which was adopted in February 2020.  Two of these are 
located in the Eastleigh Local Area, Eastleigh AQMA No. 1 (A335) in the 
centre and Eastleigh AQMA No. 2 (M3) passing through the south-west and 
bordering the western boundary (see Appendix 1 for map).  They were both 
declared due to a risk of exceedance of the annual objective for nitrogen 
dioxide (NO2). 

Air Quality Monitoring Results 

5. Monitoring across the Eastleigh Local Area is carried out by 
two principle methods: 

- Diffusion tubes measure NO2 and provide monthly values. 

- Three continuous monitoring stations measure NO2 with higher 
accuracy and time resolution, allowing them to show changes as 
they happen during the course of the day.  Particulate matter (PM) 
of two sizes is also measured at one of these stations. 

6. Air quality monitoring data is presented in Appendix 2 and covers from 01 
January 2022 up to 31 December  2022.  Where gaps in the data are seen a 
short explanation of the reason is provided.  Results are verified through 
independent data ratification by Imperial College London which has not yet 
been completed for 2022 therefore this is only an estimate for the current year.  
It shows that the annual objective levels have not been exceeded at the 
continuous monitoring sites in 2022.  Finalised results for 2022 which can be 
put into context with long term trends will be provided in the next report.  A 
comparison of the 2022 data collected for 3 diffusion tube locations, 
Southampton Road, Leigh Road / Pluto Road and Leigh Road J13 is included.  
This shows that in the majority of months, and for the year to date overall, 
concentrations are lower in 2022 than the average for 2018 – 2020 suggesting 
that an overall decreasing trend will be continued. Despite this, concentrations 
recorded so far show there is still a risk of exceeding the annual objective level 
at Southampton Road 1 and Leigh Road Junction 13. 

7. The previous issue with the monitoring cabinet at Southampton Road has 
been resolved. However, the instrument at Steele Close is now faulty, and due 
to its age we have not been able to source replacement parts. A replacement 

40



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

instrument is on order and we currently expect this be installed by the 
beginning of April 2023. 

8. As a result we have had a loss of data at Steele Close over 2022 at this 
location. As stated in previous reports, the loss of data is unwelcome, however 
we are still able to relay on our diffusion tube data for our reporting. 

Air Quality Action Plan 

9. Progress against each of the ELAC relevant actions in the Borough-wide 
AQAP is shown in Appendix 3, with some of these discussed in more detail 
below. 

10. The Low Emission Taxi Scheme, funded by a bid to the DEFRA Air Quality 
Grant Programme, was extended in August 2021 to bring the requirements in 
line with those in Southampton, and so as to include grants for EURO VI 
diesel vehicles, for 5-8 passengers or are wheelchair accessible. A change to 
the licencing conditions from January 2022 means new diesel vehicles will no 
longer be licenced unless they are of EURO VI standard. 

11. As the scheme was administered by SCC and funding for that area has been 
fully allocated, SCC have agreed with Defra that the focus will now be on 
“supporting cleaner taxi fleets with an ERD Funded electric vehicle ‘try before 
you buy’ scheme which has been made available to EBC businesses.  SCC is 
currently exploring opportunities to extend this scheme into 2023/24 using 
further Clean Air Funding and where possible we will continue to support EBC 
in the spirit of the original Defra joint bid, via this scheme and using any new 
funding we secure”. 

12. The DEFRA funded project aimed at reducing emissions, in particular of 
particulate matter, from domestic burning has continued over 2022 and into 
2023. This is run by The Environment Centre and includes awareness raising 
by; messaging, leaflets, posters and social media along with press articles and 
direct engagement such as attending events and visiting community groups.  
In Eastleigh these visits have included breathe easy groups, gardening and 
allotment groups, and retailers that sell firewood.  The campaign is adapted for 
winter to include a focus on cleaner alternatives to solid fuels. Currently the 
project team are working on common messaging for the partner authorities to 
use when engaging with complaints of smoke from wood burning. 

13. In March 2022 we were successful in obtaining further DEFRA funding of 
£132,932 from the Air Quality Grant Programme. The project is for a 
combination of communications campaigns and schools projects, supported 
by provision of active travel infrastructure. The work in schools is to be 
delivered by Sustrans, with EBC officers in the pollution and communications 
team co-ordinating associated campaigns. 

14. Sustrans have advertised for the schools project officer post and will be 
interviewing shortly. Eastleigh have agreed funding with Toynbee School for 
support providing a cycle storage facility. 

41



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Environmental Improvement Plan 2023 

15. Under the Environment Act 2021 the Government committed to introduce new 
targets for tackling air pollution. The Environmental Improvement Plan 2023 
introduces the following targets: A legal target to require a maximum annual 
mean concentration of 10 micrograms of PM2.5 per cubic metre (µg/m3) by 
2040, with a new interim target of 12 µg/m3 by the end of January 2028. By 
way of context the figure for 2022 at Southampton Road was 8ug/m3 (74% 
capture rate), and is 13ug/m3 for 2023 year to date. We will need to see a full 
years’ data collection to establish if we will be compliant or not with this target 
value. 

16. Other commitments in the Plan include: reduction in population exposure to 
PM2.5 by 35% in 2040 compared to 2018 levels, with a new interim target to 
reduce exposure by 22% by the end of January 2028, and to reduce 
emissions of nitrogen oxides by 73% by 2030 when compared with 2005 
levels. 

17. As yet guidance on the approach that will be required to bring about these 
changes has not been disclosed, however initial indications from Defra are 
that it is anticipated that where measures are required that these will be 
included in the Air Quality Action Plan, AQAP. It is likely therefore that the, 
AQAP will need to be reviewed and updated later this year or early 2024. 

Financial Implications 

18. Funding sources for individual actions are shown in the table in Appendix 3 
and include grant applications and Section 106 Agreements as well as existing 
budgets and available resource. 

19. Any actions identified in the new AQAP that require additional funding for 
delivery will be taken to the relevant Local Area Committee (LAC) or Cabinet 
for approval.  Where possible Eastleigh Borough Council will work in 
partnership to deliver these and will take every opportunity to secure additional 
funding that is made available through grant funds or securing developers 
contributions from Section 106 Agreements. 

Risk Assessment 

20. The AQAP will ensure that the Council takes a managed approach to air 
quality by identifying the most effective actions and targeting priority 
locations.  Progress against the AQAP will be reported annually, and the 
actions reviewed and updated when necessary to ensure they remain relevant 
to Council priorities and activities. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

21. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as it relates to 
addressing an issue that, although it has an impact on all residents, can 
disproportionately affect the most vulnerable in society such as children, 
people with health issues and areas of social deprivation.  An Equality Impact 

42



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and was submitted with the 
AQAP.  In summary the EqIA shows that the Council has made efforts to 
engage those groups which are most affected by poor air quality and taken 
into account their concerns as part of the development of the plan.  The aim of 
the AQAP is to improve air quality across the Borough, this will benefit 
everyone but particularly those groups which air pollution has the biggest 
impact upon.  In this way, the AQAP is working to reduce inequality and 
adverse impacts on vulnerable groups. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

22. The AQAP supports work in the Climate and Environmental Emergency 
Strategy and Action Plan and many actions are relevant to both areas of 
work.  

23. The AQAP aims to improve air quality across the Borough, particularly in local 
areas where air quality does not meet national objective levels.  Poor air 
quality has significant impact on the local environment and public health and in 
many cases air quality improvements are also positive for climate 
change.  Conflicts can arise however, where action in one area has a 
detrimental effect on the other, therefore it’s important to consider how to 
achieve the maximum benefit.  In this way the AQAP will contribute towards 
the environmental targets set out in the Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Strategy.  

 

Conclusion 

24. This report provides an update on monitoring for the Eastleigh Area, however 
it should be noted that results have not yet been ratified therefore this is only 
an indication of the 2022. 

25. Eastleigh Borough Council continues to work towards delivering improvements 
in air quality and the AQAP sets the Council’s programme of work for this. 

NEIL SCOTT 
SENIOR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER 

 
Date: 2 March 2023 
Contact Officer: Neil Scott 
Tel No: 023 8068 8304 
e-mail: neil.scott@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached:  

1- AQMA & Sampling Point Map 
2- 2021 Air quality data for ELAC 
3- Progress against AQAP measures 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

43



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* Background Papers: None. 
 

44



Appendix 1 – Map of Eastleigh AQMAs and sampling points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eastleigh AQMA No.1 (A335) in green shading 

and Eastleigh AQMA No.2 (M3) in purple shading 

45



 

 

 

46



Sampling Points 
BEL – Belmont Road 
BR2 – Bishopstoke Road 2 
CR – Campbell Road 
CR3 – Campbell Road 3 
CR4 – Campbell Road 4 
CA(15) – Chestnut Avenue 
CC – Chestnut Close 
DD – Dove Dale 
HG – Hadleigh Gardens  
LR13 – Leigh Road / Junction 13 
LRPR – Leigh Road / Pluto Road 
MC – Medina Close 
MS – Mill Street 
NH – Nuffield Hospital 
OX – Oxburgh Close 
PA – Passfield Avenue 
PC – Porteous Crescent 
SRAN(17) – Southampton Road Analyser 
SR1 – Southampton Road 1 
SR2 – Southampton Road 2 
SSQ – Sparrow Square 
SC – Steele Close 
TP – The Point 
TW – Twyford Road 
WA – Woodside Avenue 
 

47



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 –Air Quality Data for ELAC 

2022 

Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous analysers) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road 

NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 28* µg/m-3 
Only 41% 
capture 

rate 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0* See above  

The Point NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 22 µg/m-3 Yes 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Yes 

Steele Close NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 20* µg/m-3 
53% 

Capture 
rate 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes 

*Data capture too low 
 

Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion tubes for selected locations) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value*** 
Objective 

Achieved*** 

Southampton 
Road 1 

NO2 40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 

38 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Pluto Road 

26 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Junction 13 

34 µg/m-3 Yes 

Belmont 
Road 

19 µg/m-3 Yes 

Hadleigh 
Gardens 

15 µg/m-3 Yes 

 
PM (Continuous analyser) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances* 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road** 

PM10 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 16* 
74% 

capture 
rate 

50 µg/m-3 (not to 
be exceeded 
more than 35 

24 Hour 
Mean 

1 
As above 

49



times per year) 

PM2.5 25 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 8* As above 

*Data capture too low 
 
Note about Southampton Road and Steele Close analysers and compliance with Annual Target an 
hourly target for nitrogen dioxide. 
 
Because of the time with low data capture there is insufficient data to report the annual average or 
if any exceedances of the hourly limit may have occurred. 
 
With respect to the ‘likely’ compliance with the annual limit value at the Southampton Road analyser 
location and the number of exceedances of the hourly limit, we would draw attention to the annual 
diffusion tube value given above for Southampton Road 1, SR1. This site is located close to the 
analyser site and routinely measures slightly higher levels of nitrogen dioxide. The data above shows 
that the annual limit value in 2022 was met at SR1, from which we are reasonably satisfied that the 
Analyser site would also have complied in 2022. With regard to exceedances of the hourly limit 
value, we can refer to the advice given to local authorities by Defra in section 7.91 the LAQM 
Technical Guidance (TG16) where it is stated that at roadside locations primarily impacted by road 
traffic emissions, that exceedances of the hourly limit for nitrogen dioxide are unlikely where the 
annual average is less than 60ug.m3. As the annual average measured at SR1 in 2022 was 38ug/m3 
this can be taken as good indication that exceedances of the hourly limit were unlikely to have 
occurred. 
 
Particulate Matter, PM10 and PM2.5 
 
Data capture is at 74% for 2022 however we do not have the ratified data at this time and figure may 
increase, however this well below our target of 95%. As such we are not placing reliance on these 
figures at this time. Whilst this is unfortunate, the Air Quality Management Area for Eastleigh was 
not declared for particulate matter. A review of the data collected for the years preceding, 2018 to 
2020, shows annual average from 22 - 23ug/m3, compared to annual target of 40ug/m3. 
Exceedances of the 24hourly limit of 50ug/m3, have only been recorded on 6 occasions over the 
three years, the current target value allows for 35 exceedances per annum. On this basis we would 
not anticipate annual averages for 2022 to differ significantly from previous values, nor for the 24 
hour limit. 
 
*** Please note that values have only had an estimated bias adjustment applied, so should be used 
as an indication only. 

50

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-21-v1.pdf
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-21-v1.pdf


Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Orange dash line = Annual average objective level 
Red line = Hourly average objective level 
 

 

51



PM10 (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Orange dash line = Annual average objective level 
Red line = 24 Hour average objective level 
 

 

52



PM2.5 (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Orange  line = 2028 Annual average objective level 
 

 

53



Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers) 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Orange line = Annual average objective level 
Red dashed line = Hourly average objective level 

 
The Point 

54



Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Red dash line = Annual average objective level 
Orange line = Hourly average objective level 

 

Steele Close 

55



Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion Tubes) 
 

 
 
Selected diffusion tube sites across ELAC 

56



Comparison of 2022 monthly diffusion tube values with 2018 – 2020 average at 3 locations 

 

 

 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 – Progress against AQAP measures  
 
Measure 
No. 

Measure Category Classificati
on 

Year 
Measure 
Introduce
d 

Estimated / 
Actual 
Completion 
Year 

Organisation
s Involved 

Funding 
Source 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / 
Barriers to 
Implementation 

ENV1.1 Monitor pollutant 
concentrations within 
AQMAs and across the 
Borough, including NO2 
and PM 

Other Other 2010 2025 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / DEFRA 
AQ Grant 
2010-11 

>85% data 
capture for 
each calendar 
year 

Monitoring ongoing, both with 
automatic analysers and 
diffusion tubes.  Soton Rd 
experienced prolonged data 
losses due to delays resiting 
equipment and technical 
matters - sample line / comms / 
power supply, 2021 into 2022. 
See Section 3 for details and 
results. 

Data available at 
www.eastleigh.my-
air.uk 

ENV1.2 Undertake focussed 
sampling exercises to 
monitor pollutant 
concentrations across 
the Borough in areas of 
community concern 

Other Other 2020 2022 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Establish 
prioritisation 
process for 
study areas 
 
Complete 3 
studies 

6 months of monitoring 
completed in two separate 
study areas requested by the 
community.  Results reported 
to relevant area committees. 

- 

ENV1.3 Complete an upgrade of 
monitoring equipment, to 
include: 
- replacement of existing 
analysers 
- addition of analysers to 
expand range of 
pollutants monitored 
- relocation of monitoring 
stations 
- installation of new 
monitoring locations 

Other Other 2019 2023 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase data 
capture for 
each calendar 
year 
 
Increase 
range of 
pollutants 
monitored to 
include PM2.5 
and ozone 
 
Add 1 new 
continuous 
monitoring 
location 

First phase of implementation 
complete, consisting of new 
analysers at Southampton 
Road and The Point.  Upgrade 
at Southampton Road includes 
new monitoring of PM2.5.  
Further phases planned for 
2021 - 2023. [Delays in roll out 
due to staff recruitment issues] 

Steele Close 
analyser to be 
replaced as due to 
age becoming 
difficult to source 
spare parts . 
 
Difficulties securing 
landowners  
permission for 
relocation of site at 
Steele Close will 
result in a delay to 
this stage.  

59



ENV1.4 Carry out trial of 
equipment linking air 
quality and traffic data 

Other Other 2018 2021 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Trial 
completed 
and findings 
reported to 
DEFRA 

The trial has been expanded to 
include six locations focussed 
around the Station Hill 
roundabout in Eastleigh Town 
and five locations along the 
newest declared section of 
AQMA in Bursledon.  Data from 
these has been collected since 
the beginning of 2021 and is 
being analysed for inclusion in 
the final project report, to be 
completed by the end of 2021. 

Project 
maintenance period 
agreed with DEFRA 
to continue 
monitoring beyond 
the project end and 
investigate long 
term use further. 

ENV2 Work in partnership with 
other Councils and key 
groups 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Regional 
Groups Co-
ordinating 
programme
s to develop 
Area wide 
Strategies 
to reduce 
emissions 
and improve 
air quality 

2012 2025 EBC / other 
Hampshire 
authorities 

EBC Attend 4 
meetings per 
year of the 
Hampshire Air 
Quality sub-
group 

Hants AQ sub-group meetings 
were on hold during 2020 and 
restarted in July 2021.  
Partnership working, on 
projects such as the solid fuel 
burning campaign (see 
measure HS3) continued 
throughout. 

Meetings 
recommenced 
March 2022. At 
meeting 17/8/22 
proposal to 
restructure the 
group with more 
senior input and 
focussing on Air 
Quality /  Climate 
Change  synergies. 

ENV3 Promote the use of 
electric vehicles by 
investigating incentives 
and developing a 
network of publicly 
available electric vehicle 
charge points across the 
Borough in both public 
and business locations 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2012 2025 EBC / HCC / 
External 
Partners / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ OLEV / 
External 
Partners / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
publicly 
available EV 
charging 
points 
 
Collect data 
on total 
number of 
kWh used 

As of July 2022 8 new Electric 
vehicle charging points have 
been installed, including an 
ultra fast 150kW charger at 
Places Leisure, (along with 
22kW charger). Channon and 
Chestnut Retail Parks have two 
chargers each, as does 
Romsey Road Car Park, these 
consist of a 22kW and a 50kW 
chargers, both of which can 
charge two cars at once. 
Usage has grown sharply form 
around 1000kWh in April to 
7000kWh by July. The most 
popular charger is the ultrafast 
at Places Leisure. The 
charging provision suppliers 
now looking to increase 
chargers at these sies and at 
other potential locations in the 
Borough. 

- 

60



A pilot of 28 on street charging 
points in Eastleigh, consisting 
of 24 bollard and 4 streetlight 
charge points, were installed in 
March 2021.  
 
The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include e-car club 
vehicles.  

ENV4 Consider the use of 
green infrastructure and 
planting to improve the 
local environment 

Other Other 2012 2025 EBC / 
Developers 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Planting 
considered in 
associated 
with public 
realm 
improvements 

Consultation on ‘Trees and 
Development Supplementary 
Planning Guidance’ carried out 
June/July 2021. 
 
The Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Action Plan 
includes a tree planting 
programme. 

Awaiting 
confirmation of 
policy following 
Local Plan 
adoption. 

TR1 Create a walking and 
cycling strategy to 
promote and encourage 
travel by these methods 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Other 2019 2022 EBC EBC Completion of 
strategy 

The  strategy due to go to 
consultation at the end of 
August 2022.   Bike Back 
Better campaign carried out 
over social media June - 
August 2022, to encourage 
cycling post Covid lock down, 
this showed a small increase in 
people cycling on a weekly 
basis of 6.6%.  

Many of the 
comments from 
Bike Back Better 
respondents 
focused on the 
need for better / 
safer cycling 
infrastructure. 

TR2.1 Continue to improve and 
extend the walking 
network in line with the 
new walking and cycling 
strategy, including 
running 
pedestrianisation events 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of walking 

2012 2025 EBC / HCC / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Reopening 
High Streets 
Safely Fund 

Increase 
number of 
pedestrian 
improvement 
schemes 
completed 

EBC is has adopted the 
placemaking principles and set 
up a Town Centre Working 
Group. HCC working on a 
movment strategy for Eastleigh 
which will go to public 
consultation.  

 

61



TR2.2 Improve and extend the 
cycle network in line with 
the new walking and 
cycling strategy, 
including: 
- maintenance of existing 
cycle paths 
- addition of new cycle 
routes 
- promotion of electric 
bicycles 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle 
network 

2012 2025 EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developers / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Increase 
length of cycle 
path available 
 
Add publicly 
available 
charging 
points for 
electric bikes 

Transforming Cities funding 
received March 2020 covers a 
variety of cycle infrastructure, 
see measures BIFOHH1, 
CFH2, BHH10 and ELAC7 for 
more details. 

- 

TR3 Run campaigns aimed at 
reducing vehicle 
emissions, including: 
- reducing the number of 
single occupancy cars 
- reducing idling of 
stationary vehicles 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2025 EBC EBC Run 2 
campaigns 
 
Increase 
number of 
people 
engaged 

Planned for implementation in 
2022. See TR1 

Delayed due to lack 
of resources. 

TR4.1 Work in partnership with 
bus companies to: 
- improve routes and 
services 
- increase patronage 
- develop a multi 
operator ticketing system 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Bus route 
improvemen
ts 

2012 2022 EBC / HCC / 
Bus Service 
Operators 
Grant / Bus 
Companies / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / HCC Maintain 
number of 
supported 
services 
 
Increase bus 
patronage 

HCC have consulted on 
proposed changes to funding of 
public transport, EBC have 
responded advising that the 
most vulnerable users should 
be protected. Xelabus have 
given notice that they will be 
cancelling all but a small 
number of their routes, 
effective November 2022. EBC 
working with HCC and other 
providers to arrange alternative 
provision, though this is 
unlikely to be a like for like 
replacement. 

- 

62



TR4.2 Work with rail operators, 
network rail and the 
community rail 
partnership to: 
- improve routes and 
services 
- improve facilities for 
multi modal journeys 
- increase patronage 
- minimise the impact of 
emissions from rail 
transport 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Public 
transport 
improvemen
ts-
interchange
s stations 
and 
services 

2012 2025 EBC / Rail 
Operators  

EBC / SWR 
Customer & 
Communitie
s 
Improvemen
t Fund 
2020-22 

Increase train 
patronage 

EBC have sent a letter of 
support for application for 
improvements at Hedge End 
station (lift provision), also 
wayfinding project at Hamble 
Stn BHH4.1. 

- 

TR4.3 Monitor progress of 
Clean Bus Technology 
Fund and implications 
for EBC 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Public 
Transport 

2018 2020 SCC OLEV Clean 
Bus 
Technology 
Funding 

Increase 
proportion of 
buses classed 
as EURO VI 
or better to 
100% 

Retrofitting has been 
completed for all service buses, 
with emissions recorded in the 
source apportionment study 
(measure ELAC2) and DEFRA 
low cost monitoring project 
(measure ENV1.4).  EBC has 
supported a SCC bid to the 
ZEBRA fund for 32 further 
electric buses which would 
travel through the Eastleigh 
AQMA to the depot.  

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

TR4.4 Engage with companies 
running non-service 
buses (school buses, 
learner drivers, rail 
replacement etc.) to 
explore upgrade options 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Public 
Transport 

2021 2023 EBC / Bus 
Companies 

Not 
Identified 

Increase 
proportion of 
buses classed 
as EURO VI 
or better to 
100% 

- This measure has 
been added as a 
follow on from 
TR4.3.  Timescale 
may be adjusted 
when finalised plan 
has been identified. 

TR5.1 Promote the Low 
Emission Taxi Incentive 
scheme to encourage 
uptake 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Taxi 
emission 
incentives 

2017 2023 EBC / SCC / 
External 
Partners 

DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Increase 
number of 
grants 
awarded 

Initial discussions held with 
SCC and Electric Blue in March 
2020 on involving EBC taxis in 
an EV trial scheme. 
 
Scheme extended in August 
2021 to include grants for 
EURO VI diesel vehicles, if 
they are for 5-8 passengers or 
are wheelchair accessible.  
Advertising including this new 
information sent directly to 
every Eastleigh taxi licensee as 
industry starts to recover after 

SCC have spent 
the proportion of 
the fund allocated 
to them and are 
now supporting 
leaner electric fleets 
with a try before 
you buy scheme, 
which will include 
EBC. 

63



lockdown, resulting in  four 
grants from Aug to Nov 2021. 

TR5.2 Implement a requirement 
for taxis to meet 
specified EURO 
standards in order to be 
licensed in EBC 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Taxi 
Licensing 
conditions 

2020 2025 EBC / SCC EBC 100% of taxis 
meet specified 
EURO 
standards 

Licencing conditions changed 
so that as of 01/01/2022 new 
diesel vehicles will not be 
licenced unless they are of 
EURO VI standard. 

This measure will 
follow TR5.1 and is 
planned for 
implementation in 
2025. 

TR6 Promote and expand car 
clubs 

Alternatives 
to private 
vehicle use 

Car Clubs 2020 2025 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of car 
club locations 
to 6 

The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include e-car club 
vehicles. EBC working on 
changes to car club to 
encourage operator to promote 
the scheme more actively. 

- 

TR7 Increase availability of 
bicycle hire schemes 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2020 2023 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
External 
Partners / 
Transformin
g Cities 

Increase 
availability of 
hire schemes 

While providing a public hire 
scheme is on hold, EBC has 
procured E-cargo bikes for loan 
to local businesses, see 
measure EC2.3.  
The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include bike/scooter hire 
provision.  

Scheme arranged 
with Yo Bikes in 
2019 aborted when 
they pulled out of 
the area in August 
2019. 

TR8 Consult on incentivising 
ownership of low 
emission vehicles 
through differential 
parking charges 

Traffic 
Management 

Emission 
based 
parking or 
permit 
charges 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Consultation 
completed 

Measure aims to consult on the 
introduction of such a scheme 
and following this plans will be 
made for any implementation.  

Plan to be 
formulated in 2022. 

TR9 Use low cost sensor 
study to understand 
relationships between 
traffic movements and 
air quality to influence 
future road design 

Traffic 
Management 

UTC, 
Congestion 
managemen
t, traffic 
reduction 

2018 2022 EBC EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Availability of 
air quality and 
traffic data in 
4 locations to 
be used as 
evidence 

Project completed and report 
made to Defra. Final iteration of 
sensors and traffic counters 
providing more reliable data, 
but did not meet all project 
outcomes. Continuing to collect 
data outside of project scope 
and use this information to 
engage with HCC on traffic 
management. 

Completed 

64



TR10 Engage with HCC and 
HE on their highways 
improvements schemes, 
such as the SMART 
motorways project, to 
ensure they support our 
work on air quality 

Traffic 
Management 

UTC, 
Congestion 
managemen
t, traffic 
reduction 

2012 2025 HCC / HE EBC / HCC 
/ HE 

2 meetings 
per year with 
highways 
authorities 

Meetings not held since Covid, 
due to HCC Health Team work 
commitments. HCC highways 
representative has left and not 
been replaced. Responded to  
LTP4 consultation 

Work through 
County grouping 
see ENV2 

HS1.1 Improve public 
awareness of air 
pollution levels and air 
quality issues through 
the EBC website 

Public 
Information 

Via the 
Internet 

2012 2020 EBC EBC Increase 
availability of 
information on 
website 
 
Increase 
webpage hits 

Website improvements 
implemented. 

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

HS1.2 Increase uptake of air 
quality alert service to 
help people manage 
their health in relation to 
air pollution 

Public 
Information 

Other 2015 2023 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
alert 
subscriptions 

There are currently 95 active 
airAlert subscriptions in EBC. 

Potential to be 
included as part of 
measure HS1.3.  
 
May be affected by 
plans to retender 
data management 
contracts and 
promotion will be 
carried out after the 
new contract begins 
in June 2022. 

HS1.3 Run regular public 
awareness campaigns to 
provide information and 
advice, and to promote 
services available 

Public 
Information 

Other 2012 2025 EBC EBC Campaigns 
run annually 

Clean Air Day plans discussed 
as part of Hants AQ sub-group 
(see measure ENV2). 

Affected by lack of 
resource. 

HS1.4 Integrate AQ into our 
Health & Wellbeing 
engagement campaigns 

Public 
Information 

Via the 
Internet 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
people 
reached by 
campaigns 

Engagement via the Clean 
Burn project with local 
communities and groups, 
addressing air pollution and 
health 

 

HS1.5 Work with local health 
professionals, health 
awareness groups and 
social prescribers to 
disseminate air quality 
information, particularly 
about airAlert 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
people 
reached. 
Increase 
number of 
airAlert 
subscriptions 

Engagement via the Clean 
Burn project with local 
communities and groups, 
addressing air pollution and 
health 

Affected by lack of 
resource. 

65



HS2.1 Annually engage with 
schools in the borough 
for travel planning and to 
run clean air campaigns 
and local monitoring 
exercises 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

School 
Travel Plans 

2015 2025 EBC / SCC EBC / SCC / 
Access 
Fund 

Increase 
number of 
schools 
participating 
per year 

Schools work includes online 
resources and competitions for 
schools, linked to Clean Air 
Day.  Promotion of active travel 
in schools also ongoing. 
 
Following the end of the 
Access Funding schools work 
decreased, with HCC travel 
planning staff still running clean 
air projects but these are not 
currently focussed in any 
Eastleigh schools.  EBC joint 
project with Sustrans 
commenced to carry out 
projects specifically in 
Eastleigh schools. Project 
initiation in September 2022 to 
run until July 2023 

Affected by 
pandemic related 
school closures. 

HS2.2 Work with HCC to 
include EBC schools in 
expansion of Facilitate at 
least three 'School 
Streets' events per year, 
organising temporary 
road closures outside 
schools  

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2020 2022 EBC / HCC EBC / HCC 3 events held 
per year 

HCC are planning a trial of 
these events for 3 schools in 
autumn 2021 but none in EBC 
have been selected.  Following 
this it is hoped the scheme will 
be expanded across the county 
and EBC have registered 
interest in participating. 

Events planned by 
EBC for 2020 
postponed due to 
pandemic related 
school closures 

HS3 Provide information and 
advice on the use of 
solid fuel burners 
through joint project with 
neighbouring authorities 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2024 EBC / SCC / 
NFDC / WCC 

DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2019-
20 

Project 
completed 
and findings 
reported to 
DEFRA 

Communications campaign in 
progress, involving regular 
promotion of messages across 
a range of platforms and in 
conjunction with partner 
authorities to provide 
consistency for residents 
across a wider area.  
Messaging is kept up to date 
with the most relevant 
information, adjusted for the 
season and for example 
promoting the change in the 
Domestic Solid Fuel Standards 
Regulations in May 2021.    
  
Additionally, a bid for extra 
funding to extend and expand 

Ongoing 

66



the project was successful with 
funding awarded in March 
2021. 

HOU1.1 Update planning 
guidance to require EV 
charging in new 
developments 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.2 Update resident parking 
policies to incentivise 
low emission vehicles 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Priority 
parking for 
LEV's 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Parking 
policies 
updated 

- Planned for 2023. 

HOU1.3 Update planning 
guidance to require low 
NOx boilers to be 
installed in new 
developments 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.4 Update planning 
guidance to require new 
developments to employ 
use of green 
infrastructure to mitigate 
air quality impacts 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.5 Update planning 
guidance to require new 
developments are well 
served with sustainable 
transport facilities, to 
include walking, cycling 
and public transport 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Other 2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

EC1.1 Update the EBC travel 
plan annually 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Workplace 
Travel 
Planning 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Annual travel 
survey 
completed 
and plan 
updated 

Staff survey was carried out in 
September 2021 and included 
gathering information on travel 
over lockdown and changes in 
behaviour.  An update of the 
travel plan will follow in 2022.  

Survey and update 
not carried out in 
2020 due to Covid-
19 

EC1.2 Increase use of EBC 
pool bikes for staff travel 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
pool bike 
users 

Improved pool bike facilities 
and promotion implemented.  
Following the success of this 
the Council is considering 
purchase of a further bike. 
Working to change cycle 
support scheme to include 

Fewer members of 
staff working on site 
has impacted on 
use of these 
facilities and 
purchase of a 
further bike has 

67



electric bicycles. been delayed.  

EC1.3 Update EBCs 
purchasing and 
contractor policies to 
ensure low emission 
options are used 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Sustainable 
Procuremen
t Guidance 

2020 2022 EBC EBC Procurement 
policy and 
guidance 
updated 

A new procurement officer has 
been appointed and will pick up 
the project, including a review 
of the Councils procurement 
spend, policies, templates and 
guidance. 

Included in the 
Council's Climate 
and Environmental 
Emergency Action 
Plan, with the latest 
update approved at 
Cabinet in June 
2020. 

EC1.4 Upgrade EBC's internal 
fleet to low emissions 
vehicles 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Company 
Vehicle 
Procuremen
t -Prioritising 
uptake of 
low 
emission 
vehicles 

2020 2025 EBC EBC / Low 
Emission 
Grant 

Increase 
proportion of 
fleet made up 
of LEVs 

An electric road sweeper and 
RCV are being trialled with the 
aim of phasing into the fleet as 
part of the vehicle replacement 
programme. Over 50 petrol 
powered hand held tools have 
been replaced with electric 
models saving over 1600L of 
fuel in six months. 

- 

EC2.1 Engage with businesses 
in the borough to do 
travel planning 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Workplace 
Travel 
Planning 

2012 2025 EBC / SCC / 
Local 
Businesses 

Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
businesses 
engaged with 
 
Appointment 
of new Travel 
Planner post 

Majority of funding secured for 
Travel Planner post and 
agreement with SCC in place. 

Awaiting 
confirmation of 
remaining funding. 

EC2.2 Investigate adopting and 
promoting the ECO 
Stars Fleet Recognition 
Scheme to encourage 
local businesses to 
upgrade LGV fleets 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Fleet 
efficiency 
and 
recognition 
schemes 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
businesses 
with ECO 
Stars 
accreditation 

- Planned for 2024. 

EC2.3 Work with local 
businesses to encourage 
use of last mile electric 
scheme 

Freight and 
Delivery 
Management 

Other 2020 2025 EBC / 
External 
Partners / 
Local 
Businesses / 
E-Cargo Bike 
Grant Fund 

EBC Number of 
businesses 
using a ‘last 
mile’ scheme  

Successful bid to the E-Cargo 
Bike Fund with SCC now has 
20 bikes  available for loan to 
local businesses.which is 
available for 3.  The scheme is 
working towards a goal of 
loaning to 40 different 
businesses by Sep 2023. By 
July 2022 the project had seen 
6 loans in Eastleigh. 

- 

68



EC3 Support and encourage 
businesses to adopt 
flexible working practices 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Encourage / 
Facilitate 
home-
working 

2012 2025 EBC / Local 
Businesses 

EBC Increase 
number of 
businesses 
engaged with 

- On hold while 
longer term effects 
of changed working 
patterns due to 
Covid-19 are 
established. 

EC4 Work with Southampton 
Airport to minimise the 
impact of their ground 
operations on air quality 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 2020 2025 EBC / 
Southampton 
Airport 

EBC Updated 
surface 
access 
strategy in 
place 

Planning application approved 
in April 2021 and S106 
agreements are being 
negotiated.  The Council is 
looking to secure contributions 
for public transport 
improvements and 
infrastructure, travel planning, 
pollution monitoring and 
mechanisms to enforce the 
vehicle cap. 

 

ELAC1 Upgrade analysers at 
Southampton Road and 
The Point monitoring 
sites 

Other Other 2019 2020 EBC EBC Equipment 
replaced 

New analysers installed at 
Southampton Road and The 
Point.  Significant water ingress 
at the Southampton Road site 
in 2020 meant a new cabinet 
had to also be purchased and 
installed. 

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC2 Conduct further studies 
of fleet make up and 
source apportionment for 
Eastleigh 

Other Other 2015 2022 EBC / 
External 
Consultants 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Completion of 
study 

Study carried out, main findings 
reported back to LAC and 
results will feed into future air 
quality work.  

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC3 Carry out trial of 
innovative monitoring 
equipment 

Other Other 2018 2021 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Data collected 
for 1 key 
junction in 
Eastleigh 

Completed See TR3 for details This measure is 
completed and so 
will be removed 
from future updates 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC4 Consider 
pedestrianisation of 
Market Street, initially as 
a temporary event 

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2019 2020 EBC / HCC / 
Reopening 
High Streets 
Safely Fund 

EBC Temporary 
closure event 
organised and 
impact 
assessed 

Pedestriansation of High Street 
and Market Street in Eastleigh 
town centre trialled as part of 
the Council's Covid-19 
response.  Scheme remained 
in place from June 2020 to July 
2021 and the majority of 
responses to a consultation by 
Hampshire County Council 
were positive, with 58% of 
respondents in favour of 

The temporary 
pedestrianisation 
measure is 
completed so has 
been removed in 
the latest update of 
the AQAP and 
replaced by 
measure ELAC4.1. 

69



retaining the scheme for up to 
18 months.  Following the lifting 
of social distancing measured it 
was no longer supported by 
HCC and was removed on 19 
July 2021. 

ELAC4.1 Explore options for 
maintaining elements of 
pedestrianisation in 
Eastleigh Town Centre 

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2021 2023 EBC / HCC EBC Ongoing 
scheme for 
management 
of High Street 
and Market 
Street 
adopted 

See TR2.1 This measure has 
been added in the 
latest update of the 
AQAP as a follow 
on from ELAC4.  
Timescale may be 
adjusted when 
finalised plan has 
been identified. 

ELAC5.1 Install electric vehicle 
charge points to include: 
- Aldi, Chestnut Retail 
Park 
- Romsey Road Car 
Park, Upper Market 
Street 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2015 2022 EBC / HCC / 
External 
Partners / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ External 
Partners / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
available EV 
charging 
points 

See ENV3 - Arrangements for 
the installation of electric 
vehicle charging points at 
Places Leisure, the Stoneham 
Development, Woodside Lane 
and Aldi continue but there is 
no set installation date yet.  

- 

ELAC5.2 Encourage uptake of 
pilot on street charging 
points and monitor their 
use 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2021 2022 HCC HCC / 
OLEV grant 

Increased use 
of EV 
charging 
points 

 
See ENV 3 - An OLEV grant 
was secured along with HCC 
funding for a pilot of 28 on 
street charging points in 
Eastleigh, consisting of 24 
bollard and 4 streetlight charge 
points.  These were installed in 
March 2021 and showed a 
monthly increase in energy 
consumption throughout April 
to June, demonstrating their 
use. 

This measure has 
been added to 
separate ELAC5 
into public and 
residential charge 
points. 

ELAC6 Continue to seek 
approval and funding for 
the Chickenhall Lane 
Link Road 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Other 2015 2025 EBC / HCC Not 
Identified 

Delivery of 
link road 

- Long term 
aspiration. 

70



ELAC7 Improve and extend the 
cycle network to include 
upgraded cycle routes 
and facilities in Eastleigh 
town centre 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle 
network 

2021 2023 EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developers / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Increase 
length of cycle 
path available 
 
Add publicly 
available 
charging 
points for 
electric bikes 

See ENV 3 - The planned 
Eastleigh Mobility Hubs (see 
measure ELAC8)  HCC are to 
draw up feasibility studies for 
the options which will go to 
public consolation this autumn, 
currently looking at Eastleigh 
Town Centre and Airport 
Parkway.  
Eastleigh Town Centre Cycle 
Route will provide a continuous 
cycle route between Parkway 
station and Eastleigh Town 
Centre, via Desborough Road 
on existing quiet streets, 
enabled by improvements to 
crossings, signage and access. 
HCC have allocated funds to 
provide a cycle bridge over the 
railway on Twyford Road 

This measure has 
been added to 
cover Transforming 
Cities projects in 
Eastleigh. 

ELAC8 Create two mobility hubs 
to offer multi-modal 
transport options and 
facilities at key locations 
in Eastleigh 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 2021 2023 EBC / SCC / 
HCC 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Mobility hubs 
completed 

See ENV 3 - Planned as part of 
the successful TCF bid, these 
facilities will offer multi-modal 
transport at key locations.  
Options include cycle hire, e-
car club vehicles, e-scooters, 
cycle parking and repair 
equipment.  A consultation was 
carried out as part of a 
feasibilitiy study in Jul/Aug 
2021 to determine the likely 
demand and the locations and 
facilities which would be most 
beneficial.  HCC are assessing 
the responses with more 
detailed plans and procurement 
to follow in 2022 and delivery in 
2023. 

This measure has 
been added to 
cover Transforming 
Cities projects in 
Eastleigh. 

 

71



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
	TRO App 1
	TRO App 2

	7 Community Grants
	Community Grants App 1

	8 Air Quality Update
	AQ App1
	AQ App2
	AQ App3


